
 
 

  
County Commission 

400 East Locust Street, Room 201 

 Union, MO 63084 

Regular Meeting 

Agenda 

http://www.franklinmo.org/ 

 
 

Tuesday, August 27, 2019 10:00 AM Commission Chambers 

Opening 
  

I. Call to Order   

 
Attendee Name Present Absent Late Arrived 
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker     

First District Commissioner Todd Boland     

Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson     
 

II. Minutes Approval 
1. Tuesday, August 20, 2019 
2. Tuesday, August 20, 2019 
3. Thursday, August 22, 2019 
4. Thursday, August 22, 2019 
 

III. Public Request for Discussion/Action 
 

IV. Action Items 
 

a. Commission Order 2019-370 In the Matter of Approving Execution of a Memorandum of 
Understanding Between Franklin County and the Missouri Department of Health and Senior Services 

b. Commission Order 2019-371 In the Matter of Setting the Emergency 911 Tax Rate for Year 2020 
c. Commission Order 2019-372 In the Matter of Adjustment of Tax Charges of Personal Property Tax 

Book for the Year 2018 & Prior to Doug Trentmann, Collector of Revenue for Franklin County – May 
d. Commission Order 2019-373 In the Matter of Adjustment of Tax Charges of Personal Property Tax 

Book for the Year 2018 & Prior to Doug Trentmann, Collector of Revenue for Franklin County – June 
e. Commission Order 2019-374 In the Matter of Adjustment of Tax Charges of Personal Property Tax 

Book for the Year 2018 & Prior to Doug Trentmann, Collector of Revenue for Franklin County – July 
f. Commission Order 2019-375 In the Matter of Authorizing Payment of Services to Lewis, Reed & 

Allen, P.C. 
g. Commission Order 2019-376 In the Matter of Notice of Public Hearing on Proposed Property Tax 

Rates for 2019 for the County of Franklin 
h. Commission Order 2019-377 In the Matter of Approving and Authorizing Acceptance of a Grant for 

the Child Passenger Safety Enforcement Campaign 
 
 

County Commission AGENDA Page 1 August 27, 2019 

http://www.franklinmo.org/


 
 

 
 

i. Commission Order 2019-378 In the Matter of Approving and Authorizing Execution of a Funding 
Agreement with the Drug Enforcement Administration and the Franklin County Sheriff’s Office 

j. Commission Order 2019-379 In the Matter of Authorizing Payment for Services to George E. 
Sansoucy, PE, LLC 

k. Commission Order 2019-380 In the Matter of Awarding Bids for Road Salt 
l. Commission Order 2019-381 In the Matter of Awarding Bids for Hot Mix Overlay – Evergreen Loop 

Road 
m. Commission Order 2019-382 In the Matter of Awarding Bids for Hot Mix Overlay – Bluff Road 
n. Commission Order 2019-383 In the Matter of Authorizing Termination of an Existing Maintenance 

Agreement with Ricoh-USA 
o. Commission Order 2019-384 In the Matter of Authorizing and Approving and Agreement with Insight 

for the Collector’s Office 
p. Commission Order 2019-385 In the Matter of Approving the Purchase of an Evidence Space Saver 

Storage System for the Franklin County Public Safety Facility 
q. Commission Order 2019-386 In the Matter of Approving the Consent Agenda and all Items Listed 

Thereon 
r. Commission Order 2019-387 In the Matter of Authorizing Franklin County, Missouri to Enter into a 

Lease Purchase Transaction, the Proceeds of Which will be used to Pay Costs of Public Safety 
Improvements and to Refund Certain of the County’s Outstanding Certificates of Participation and 
Authorizing the Execution of Certain Documents and Actions in Connection Therewith 
 

 
V. Discussion Items and Reports 
 
 A. Elected Official and Departmental Reports (As Needed) 
 
 B. Commission Discussion 
 
VI. Years of Service Recognition 
 
 A. Timothy Miller, 25 years of service 1994-2019 
 
 
VII. Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  
 
 
 
 

County Commission AGENDA Page 2 August 27, 2019 



 
 

 County Commission 400 East Locust Street, Room 201 
 Union, MO 63084 

Regular Meeting 

Minutes 

http://www.franklinmo.org/ 

 
 

Tuesday, August 20, 2019 10:00 AM Commission Chambers 

Opening 
  

I. Call to Order   

 
Attendee Name Present Absent Late Arrived 
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker     

Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson     
First District Commissioner Todd Boland     
Angela Gibson, Executive Assistant     
Mark Piontek, County Counselor     
Monte Miller, Missourian     
Lisa Smart, Deputy Recorder     
Tammy Vemmer, Auditor     
Doug Trentmann, Collector     
Lt. Pendelton     
Tony Henry, Maintenance Director     
Tim Baker, County Clerk     
Jeanine Stevens, Deputy County Clerk     
Abe Cook, EMA     
Ann Struttmann, Purchasing     
Ron Williams, Highway Administrator     
Mary Jo Straatmann, Public Administrator     
Nichole Zielke, P&Z     
Bob Parks     
Angela Stanton, Prosecuting Attorney’s Office     
Debbie Aholt, Treasurer     
Tom Copeland, Assessor     
Michelle Briggs, Prosecuting Attorney’s Office     

 

II. Minutes Approval 
1. Tuesday, August 13, 2019 

Voter Name Motion Second Aye 
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

2. Thursday, August 15, 2019 
 

 
County Commission MINUTES Page 1 August 20, 2019 

http://www.franklinmo.org/


 
 

 
 

Voter Name Motion Second Aye 
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

 
III. Public Request for Discussion/Action 

 
IV. Action Items 

a. Commission Order 2019-357 In the Matter of Approving and Authorizing an Agreement with 
Wunderlich Surveying & Engineering, Inc. 

Voter Name Motion Second Aye 
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

 
b. Commission Order 2019-358 In the Matter of Approving and Authorizing Execution of an 

Agreement with the Missouri Department of Health and Senior Services Pertaining to Public Health 
Emergency Preparedness 

Voter Name Motion Second Aye 
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

 
c. Commission Order 2019-359 In the Matter of Accepting an Offer to Purchase Certain Real Property 

from Franklin County and Authorizing Execution of a Trustee’s Deed in Order to Convey Such 
Property to Robin Brussel 

Voter Name Motion Second Aye 
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

d. Commission Order 2019-360 In the Matter of Accepting an Offer to Purchase Certain Real Property 
from Franklin County and Authorizing Execution of a Trustee’s Deed in Order to Convey Such 
Property to Lawrence Kopecky 

Voter Name Motion Second Aye 
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

 
e. Commission Order 2019-361 In the Matter of Accepting an Offer to Purchase Certain Real Property 

from Franklin County and Authorizing Execution of a Trustee’s Deed in Order to Convey Such 
Property to Paul Kresyman 

 
County Commission MINUTES Page 2 August 20, 2019 



 
 

 
  

Voter Name Motion Second Aye 
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

 
f. Commission Order 2019-362 In the Matter of Accepting an Offer to Purchase Certain Real Property 

from Franklin County and Authorizing Execution of a Trustee’s Deed in Order to Convey Such 
Property to Daniel Wheeler 

Voter Name Motion Second Aye 
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

 
g. Commission Order 2019-363 In the Matter of Approving a Lease Agreement Pertaining to Real 

Property Acquired by Franklin County through Flood Buy-Out Programs 
Voter Name Motion Second Aye 

Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

 
h. Commission Order 2019-364 In the Matter of Approving and Authorizing Execution of Documents 

Pertaining to the Transfer of Certain Real Property to the City of St. Clair, Missouri 
Voter Name Motion Second Aye 

Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

 
i. Commission Order 2019-365 In the Matter of Approving and Authorizing Execution of an 

Agreement with AT&T and NetMotion Wireless 
Voter Name Motion Second Aye 

Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

 
j. Commission Order 2019-366 In the Matter of Approving and Authorizing Execution of an 

Agreement with AT&T for Local Private Line Service 
Voter Name Motion Second Aye 

Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

 
County Commission MINUTES Page 3 August 20, 2019 



 
 

 
k. Commission Order 2019-367 In the Matter of Approving and Authorizing Execution of an 

Agreement with Spectrum for the Installation of Fiber Internet Access 
Voter Name Motion Second Aye 

Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

 
l. Commission Order 2019-368 In the Matter of Approving and Authorizing Execution of an 

Agreement with Evans Consoles Incorporated 
Voter Name Motion Second Aye 

Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

 
m. Commission Order 2019-369 In the Matter of Approving the Consent Agenda and all the Items 

Listed Thereon 
Voter Name Motion Second Aye 

Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

 
V. Discussion Items and Reports 
 
 A. Elected Official and Departmental Reports (As Needed) 
 
 B. Commission Discussion 
   - Presiding Commissioner Brinker recognizes the Franklin County Health Department for their  
   exceptional service and ability to handle the increased workload due to the Hepatitis A outbreak.  
 
VI. Years of Service Recognition 
 
 A. Angela Stanton, 20 years of service 1999-2019 
  
 B. Timothy Miller, 25 years of service 1994-2019  moved to August 27, 2019 agenda 
 
 
VII. Adjournment 
 Motion to adjourn meeting. Meeting adjourned at 10:13 a.m. 

Voter Name Motion Second Aye 
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

 
 
  
  
 

County Commission MINUTES Page 4 August 20, 2019 



 
 

 County Commission 400 East Locust Street, Room 201 
 Union, MO 63084 

Working Session 
 

Minutes 

http://www.franklinmo.org/ 

 
Angela Gibson 

Tuesday, August 20, 2019 10:30 AM Commission Conf. Room 

 
 

I. Call to Order 
Attendee Name Present Absent Late Arrived 

Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker     

Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson     
First District Commissioner Todd Boland     
Angela Gibson, Executive Assistant     
Tim Baker, County Clerk     
Jeanine Stevens, Deputy County Clerk     

 
 

II. Meeting to Discuss Tax Rates 
Discussion was held on the proposed tax rates. A commission order for publishing the proposed tax 
rates will be on the August 27, 2019 agenda for Commission approval.  

 
III. Adjournment 

Meeting adjourned at 10:30 a.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

County Commission MINUTES Page 1 August 20, 2019
  

http://www.franklinmo.org/


 
 

 County Commission 400 East Locust Street, Room 201 
 Union, MO 63084 

Working Session 

MINUTES 

http://www.franklinmo.org/ 

 
Angela Gibson 

Thursday, August 22, 2019 1:00 PM Commission Conf. Room 

 
 

I. Call to Order 
Attendee Name Present Absent Late Arrived 

Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker     

Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson     
First District Commissioner Todd Boland     
Angela Gibson, Executive Assistant     
Mark Piontek, County Counselor     
Ann Struttmann, Purchasing Director     

 
 

II. Commission Workshop Meeting 
Discussion was held on various ongoing and upcoming action items.  
 
The Elected Officials and Department Head meeting will be held on Monday, August 26, 2019. 
Commission Orders for the upcoming meeting on August 27, 2019 were reviewed and discussion was 
held.  
 
There will not be a Commission Meeting on September 3, 2019.  
 
The Notice of Public Hearing for Speed Limits has been posted in four (4) non-conspicuous, public 
places: Government Center Lobby, Old Historic Courthouse, Scenic Regional Library – Union, and the 
Union City Hall.  
 
Nothing further at this time.  
 

 
III. Adjournment 

 
 Meeting adjourned at 1:27 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

County Commission Page 1  

http://www.franklinmo.org/


 
 

 County Commission 400 East Locust Street, Room 201 
 Union, MO 63084 

Working Session 

Agenda 

http://www.franklinmo.org/ 

 
Angela Gibson 

Thursday, August 22, 2019 2:00 PM Commission Conf. Room 

 
 

I. Call to Order 
Attendee Name Present Absent Late Arrived 

Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker     

Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson     
First District Commissioner Todd Boland     
Angela Gibson, Executive Assistant     
Mark Piontek, County Counselor     
John Simmons, 109th District Representative     
Rick Eastman, Ameren Senior Legislative Rep.     
Steven C. Whitworth, Environmental Policy and 
Analysis 

    

 
 

II. Meeting with Rick Eastman - Ameren 
 
Rick Eastman, with Ameren Missouri, provides an overview of the plan to close the basins that store the 
coal byproducts at the Labadie Plant. Expected completion date is 2021. Further discussion was held.  

 
III. Adjournment 

 
Meeting adjourned at 2:45 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

County Commission Page 1  

http://www.franklinmo.org/


Commission Order No. 2019-370 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday,August 27, 2019 
County of Franklin Contract/Agreements 
 

Commission Order 2019-370 Page 1 

ss. 

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING EXECUTION 
OF A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  
BETWEEN FRANKLIN COUNTY AND THE MISSOURI  
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SENIOR SERVICES 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Missouri Department of Health and Senior Services, an agency of the State of 
Missouri, desires to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding with the Franklin County Health 
Department, an agency of Franklin County, with regard to the sharing of technological resources 
necessary to provide services to the citizens of Missouri; and 
 
WHEREAS, Franklin County is willing to maintain the secure internet access necessary to insure that 
the privacy of all records is maintained and to perform all other obligations required by the 
Memorandum of Understanding, a copy of which is attached hereto; and 
 
WHEREAS, the effective period for the Memorandum of Understanding is for the period of 
September 1, 2019, through August 31, 2020; and 
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED by the County Commission of Franklin County that the proposed 
Memorandum of Understanding is hereby approved and that Angie Hittson is hereby authorized to 
execute said Memorandum of Understanding on behalf of Franklin County.  
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Angie Hittson shall provide an executed copy of said Memorandum 
of Understanding and a copy of this Order to the State of Missouri Department of Health and Senior 
Services.   
 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Presiding Commissioner 

 
 
              Commissioner of 1st District 
 
 
              Commissioner of 2nd District 









Commission Order No. 2019-371 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday,August,27,2019 
County of Franklin Tax Levy 
 

Commission Order 2019-371  Page 1 

ss. 

 
 
IN THE MATTER OF SETTING 
THE EMERGENCY 911 TAX RATE 
FOR YEAR 2020 
 

WHEREAS, prior hereto the voters of Franklin County approved the adoption of countywide E-911; and 

WHEREAS, said voters approved a telephone tax rate ceiling of 15%; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Sections 190.300 through and including 190.320 RSMo, the telephone tax shall be applied to the 
Tariff rate or rates billed to service users (all sales) subject to the tax; and 

WHEREAS, upon annual review of the telephone tax rate for E-911, the Franklin County Commission finds that the 
telephone tax rate of 15% is needed for the year beginning January 1, 2020. 

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the telephone tax rate levy for E-911 service be and is hereby set for the year 2020 
at a 15% tax rate, effective January 1, 2020. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that a copy of the order to Abe Cook, EMA director; Tambra Vemmer, County Auditor; 
Jeannine Stevens, Deputy County Clerk; Southwestern Bell; Fidelity Communications; and to other parties that have 
indicated that they will be collecting E-911 taxes. 

 

 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Presiding Commissioner 

 
 
              Commissioner of 1st District 
 
 
              Commissioner of 2nd District 



Commission Order No. 2019-372 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, August 27,2019 
County of Franklin  Taxes-Property 
 

Commission Order 2019-372  

ss. 

IN THE MATTER OF ADJUSTMENT OF TAX CHARGES 
ON PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX BOOK FOR THE YEAR 
2018 & PRIOR TO DOUG TRENTMANN, COLLECTOR OF 
REVENUE FOR FRANKLIN COUNTY 
 
 WHEREAS, Doug Trentmann, Collector of Revenue presents to the Franklin County Commission statements describing Personal Property 
for 2018 and prior for which he was not charged on the respective books; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Commission, after examining and inquiring into all the said statements finds that the described Personal Property 
submitted by him shall be charged to the Collector for the year ending February 29, 2020. 
 
 IT IS HEREBY ORDERED by this Commission that adjustments be and are made on taxes charged to Doug Trentmann, Collector for the 
year 2018 and prior for additional charges as required in statements and recapitulated as follows: 
 
 2018 Additional Personal Property Valuation $1,413,493.00 
 2018 Additional Personal Property Tax $93,070.78 
   
 2017 Additional Personal Property Valuation $281,245.00 
 2017 Additional Personal Property Tax $17,824.52 
 
 2016 Additional Personal Property Valuation $16,835.00 
 2016 Additional Personal Property Tax $1,159.20 
 
 2015 Additional Personal Property Valuation $0.00 
 2015 Additional Personal Property Tax $0.00 
 
 2014 & Prior Additional Personal Property Valuation $0.00 
 2014 & Prior Additional Personal Property Tax $0.00 
 
 Total Additional Personal Property Valuation $1,711,573.00 
 Total Additional Personal Property Tax $112,054.50 
 
 IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the above Personal Property be shown in its entirety on order written finalizing charges to the Collector 
of Revenue for the month of May and the year ending February 29, 2020. 
 
 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that a copy of this order be delivered to Doug Trentmann, Collector; Jeannine Stevens, Chief Deputy 
County Clerk and to Tambra Vemmer, Auditor 
 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Presiding Commissioner 

 
 
              Commissioner of 1st District 
 
 
              Commissioner of 2nd District 







































Commission Order No. 2019-373 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, August 27,2019 
County of Franklin  Taxes-Property 
 

Commission Order 2019-373  

ss. 

IN THE MATTER OF ADJUSTMENT OF TAX CHARGES 
ON PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX BOOK FOR THE YEAR 
2018 & PRIOR TO DOUG TRENTMANN, COLLECTOR OF 
REVENUE FOR FRANKLIN COUNTY 
 
 WHEREAS, Doug Trentmann, Collector of Revenue presents to the Franklin County Commission statements describing Personal Property 
for 2018 and prior for which he was not charged on the respective books; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Commission, after examining and inquiring into all the said statements finds that the described Personal Property 
submitted by him shall be charged to the Collector for the year ending February 29, 2020. 
 
 IT IS HEREBY ORDERED by this Commission that adjustments be and are made on taxes charged to Doug Trentmann, Collector for the 
year 2018 and prior for additional charges as required in statements and recapitulated as follows: 
 
 2018 Additional Personal Property Valuation $3,055,469.00 
 2018 Additional Personal Property Tax $207,759.58 
   
 2017 Additional Personal Property Valuation $134,430.00 
 2017 Additional Personal Property Tax $9,127.08 
 
 2016 Additional Personal Property Valuation $5,930.00 
 2016 Additional Personal Property Tax $373.50 
 
 2015 Additional Personal Property Valuation $580.00 
 2015 Additional Personal Property Tax $31.27 
 
 2014 & Prior Additional Personal Property Valuation $0.00 
 2014 & Prior Additional Personal Property Tax $0.00 
 
 Total Additional Personal Property Valuation $3,196,409.00 
 Total Additional Personal Property Tax $217,291.43 
 
 IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the above Personal Property be shown in its entirety on order written finalizing charges to the Collector 
of Revenue for the month of June and the year ending February 29, 2020. 
 
 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that a copy of this order be delivered to Doug Trentmann, Collector; Jeannine Stevens, Chief Deputy 
County Clerk and to Tambra Vemmer, Auditor 
 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Presiding Commissioner 

 
 
              Commissioner of 1st District 
 
 
              Commissioner of 2nd District 

































Commission Order No. 2019-374 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, August 27,2019 
County of Franklin  Taxes-Property 
 

Commission Order 2019-374  

ss. 

IN THE MATTER OF ADJUSTMENT OF TAX CHARGES 
ON PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX BOOK FOR THE YEAR 
2018 & PRIOR TO DOUG TRENTMANN, COLLECTOR OF 
REVENUE FOR FRANKLIN COUNTY 
 
 WHEREAS, Doug Trentmann, Collector of Revenue presents to the Franklin County Commission statements describing Personal Property 
for 2018 and prior for which he was not charged on the respective books; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Commission, after examining and inquiring into all the said statements finds that the described Personal Property 
submitted by him shall be charged to the Collector for the year ending February 29, 2020. 
 
 IT IS HEREBY ORDERED by this Commission that adjustments be and are made on taxes charged to Doug Trentmann, Collector for the 
year 2018 and prior for additional charges as required in statements and recapitulated as follows: 
 
 2018 Additional Personal Property Valuation $1,088,744.00 
 2018 Additional Personal Property Tax $73,600.54 
   
 2017 Additional Personal Property Valuation $225,839.00 
 2017 Additional Personal Property Tax $14,208.52 
 
 2016 Additional Personal Property Valuation $34,710.00 
 2016 Additional Personal Property Tax $2,131.62 
 
 2015 Additional Personal Property Valuation $360.00 
 2015 Additional Personal Property Tax $26.68 
 
 2014 & Prior Additional Personal Property Valuation $3,270.00 
 2014 & Prior Additional Personal Property Tax $170.53 
 
 Total Additional Personal Property Valuation $1,352,923.00 
 Total Additional Personal Property Tax $90,137.89 
 
 IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the above Personal Property be shown in its entirety on order written finalizing charges to the Collector 
of Revenue for the month of July and the year ending February 29, 2020. 
 
 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that a copy of this order be delivered to Doug Trentmann, Collector; Jeannine Stevens, Chief Deputy 
County Clerk and to Tambra Vemmer, Auditor 
 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Presiding Commissioner 

 
 
              Commissioner of 1st District 
 
 
              Commissioner of 2nd District 



































Commission Order No. 2019-375 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, August 27, 2019 
County of Franklin Contract/Agreements 
 

Commission Order 2019-375  Page 1 

ss. 

IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING  
PAYMENT OF SERVICES 
TO LEWIS, REED & ALLEN, P.C.  
 

WHEREAS, the County of Franklin, Missouri retained Richard D. Reed of Lewis, Reed & Allen, P.C. 
to represent the County of Franklin as part of a larger Joint Defense Agreement in connection with 
certain assessment appeals filed by Spire, f/k/a Missouri Natural Gas and by Ameren, f/k/a Union 
Electric; and 

WHEREAS, the County of Franklin, Missouri needs to authorize payment for services provided by the 
above-named entities; and                                                                                                                       

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED by the Franklin County Commission that the invoice total in the 
amount of $100.00 from Richard D. Reed of Lewis, Reed and Allen, P.C. is hereby approved for 
payment. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, the County shall, and the officials, agents and employees of the County 
are hereby authorized and directed to, take such further action, and execute and deliver such other 
documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply 
with the intent of this Order and that a copy of this Order be provided to Tim Baker, County Clerk; 
Debbie Aholt, County Treasurer; Tammy Vemmer, County Auditor; and Ann Struttmann, Purchasing 
Agent. 

 

 
______________________________________ 

Presiding Commissioner 
 
 
              Commissioner of 1st District 
 
 
              Commissioner of 2nd District 





Commission Order No. 2019-376 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, August 27, 2019 
County of Franklin Taxes-Property 
 

Commission Order 2019-376 Page 1 

ss. 

IN THE MATTER OF NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PROPOSED 
PROPERTY TAX RATES FOR 2019 FOR THE COUNTY OF FRANKLIN 
 
WHEREAS, Section 137.055 RSMo requires that a public hearing be held prior to the County Commission setting a tax rate; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 137.055.2 RSMo requires that notice of such public hearing be published. 
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that notice in substantially the following form be published; to wit: 

 
    NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
      

A Public Hearing will be held at 9:45 a.m., Tuesday, September 10, 2019 in the Franklin County Commission Chambers, Room 206, 
2nd floor, County Government Center, Union, Missouri at which time the citizens may be heard on the tentative property tax rates 
proposed to be set for the year 2019 by the Franklin County Commission which will produce substantially the same revenues as 
required by the budget for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2019 for Franklin County, Missouri.  (The tax rate is subject to change 
based upon subsequent information from the State Auditor’s Office) 
 
ASSESSED    CURRENT TAX YEAR  PRIOR TAX YEAR 
VALUATION         2019             2018 
     
REAL ESTATE    $ 1,628,487,498   $ 1,515,147,542   
PERSONAL PROPERTY   $    416,491,278   $    420,258,943    
TOTAL     $ 2,044,978,776   $ 1,935,406,485  
  

Proposed Tax Rate  Actual Rate Imposed 
for 2019 (per $100)   for 2018 (per $100) 

GENERAL FUND   $ .1273   $ .1258 
ROAD & BRIDGE FUND  $ .2102   $ .2156 
SB40 RESOURCE BOARD  $ .0975   $ .1000 
 

Amount of Property  Amount of Property 
     Tax Revenue to be  Tax Revenue to be 
     Produced for 2019  Produced in 2018 
GENERAL FUND   $    2,603,258   $    2,434,741 
ROAD & BRIDGE FUND  $    4,298,545   $    4,172,736 
SB40 RESOURCE BOARD  $    1,993,854   $    1,935,406  
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the above notice be published in the September 4, 2019 edition of the Washington Missourian. 
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that a copy of this Order be provided to Tim Baker, County Clerk. 
 
         ___________________________________________ 
         Presiding Commissioner 
 
         ___________________________________________ 
         Commissioner of First District 
 
         ___________________________________________ 
         Commissioner of Second District 



Commission Order No. 2019-377 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday,August,27, 2019 
County of Franklin Contract/Agreements 
 

Commission Order 2019-377 Page 1 

ss. 

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING AND 
AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE OF A 
GRANT FOR THE CHILD PASSENGER 
SAFETY ENFORCEMENT CAMPAIGN 
 
WHEREAS, MoDOT’s Traffic and Highway Safety Division has identified the Franklin County Sheriff’s Office 
as being qualified and eligible to participate in the Child Passenger Safety Enforcement Campaign; and  
 
WHEREAS, as a condition of participating in such campaign it is necessary that Franklin County enter into a 
“Subaward/Subcontract Agreement” with the University of Central Missouri, a copy of which is attached hereto; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the award to Franklin County to participate in the campaign is up to a maximum of $750.00 to be 
used for overtime compensation for Sheriff’s Office personnel in accordance with the above referenced 
agreement. 
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED by the Franklin County Commission that the grant award for the period of 
September 15, 2019 through September 21, 2019 is hereby accepted. 
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the “Subaward/Subcontract Agreement” is hereby approved and that Steven 
Pelton, Sheriff and Sgt. Jason Weggemann, Franklin County Sheriff’s Department, are authorized to execute 
said Agreement on behalf of Franklin County. 
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that a copy of this Order and a copy of the fully executed Agreement be provided 
to MoDOT’s Traffic and Highway Safety Division; to Sgt. Jason Weggemann, Sheriff’s Department; Sheriff 
Steve Pelton; Ann Struttmann, Purchasing Agent; Christa Buchanan; Deputy County Clerk. 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Presiding Commissioner 

 
 
              Commissioner of 1st District 
 
 
              Commissioner of 2nd District 











































Commission Order No. 2019-378 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, August 27, 2019 
County of Franklin Contract/Agreements 
 

Commission Order 2019-378 Page 1 

ss. 

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING 
AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION 
OF A FUNDING AGREEMENT 
WITH THE DRUG ENFORCEMENT 
ADMINISTRATION  
 
WHEREAS, the United States Department of Justice through the Drug Enforcement Administration provides 
funding to local law enforcement agencies to combat crime involving illegal drugs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Franklin County Sheriff’s Department has been selected to participate in such program; and 
 
WHEREAS, attached hereto is a copy of the subject Funding Agreement which provides funding for overtime 
in the sum of $18,649.00; and 
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the Agreement with the Drug Enforcement Agency is hereby approved and 
that Steven M. Pelton, Sheriff, is authorized to execute said Agreement on behalf of Franklin County. 
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that an executed copy of this Agreement and a copy of this Order be provided to 
the Drug Enforcement Agency; Steven M. Pelton, Franklin County Sheriff; Tammy Vemmer, Franklin County 
Auditor; Christa Buchanan, Clerk’s Office; and Ann Struttmann, Franklin County Purchasing Agent.  
 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Presiding Commissioner 

 
 
              Commissioner of 1st District 
 
 
              Commissioner of 2nd District 













Commission Order No. 2019-379 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, August 27, 2019 
County of Franklin Contract/Agreements 
 

Commission Order 2019-379  Page 1 

ss. 

IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING  
PAYMENT OF SERVICES TO 
GEORGE E. SANSOUCY, PE, LLC  
 

WHEREAS, the County of Franklin, Missouri retained George E. Sansoucy of George E. Sansoucy, 
PE, LLC to represent the County of Franklin as part of a larger Joint Defense Agreement in 
connection with certain assessment appeals filed by Spire, f/k/a Missouri Natural Gas and by 
Ameren, f/k/a Union Electric; and 

WHEREAS, the County of Franklin, Missouri needs to authorize payment for services provided by the 
above-named entities; and                                                                                                                       

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED by the Franklin County Commission that the invoice total in the 
amount of $253.96 from George E. Sansoucy, PE, LLC is hereby approved for payment, being the 
last payment that will be approved by the Franklin County Commission. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, the County shall, and the officials, agents and employees of the County 
are hereby authorized and directed to, take such further action, and execute and deliver such other 
documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply 
with the intent of this Order and that a copy of this Order be provided to Tim Baker, County Clerk; 
Debbie Aholt, County Treasurer; Tammy Vemmer, County Auditor; and Ann Struttmann, Purchasing 
Agent. 

 

 
______________________________________ 

Presiding Commissioner 
 
 
              Commissioner of 1st District 
 
 
              Commissioner of 2nd District 









Commission Order No. 2019-380 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, August 27, 2019 
County of Franklin Bid Award 
 

Commission Order 2019-380 Page 1 

ss. 

IN THE MATTER OF AWARDING 
BIDS FOR ROAD SALT 
 
 
WHEREAS, a public notice to bidders asking for sealed bids for "Road Salt” addressed to the 
Purchasing Department of Franklin County, Union, Missouri was published in the Washington 
Missourian in the July 24, 2019 edition, for receipt by August 13, 2019; and 
 
WHEREAS, after due deliberation and consideration and the recommendation of the Highway 
Administrator, the Franklin County Commission awards the bid to the lowest and most responsive 
bidder, Champion Salt, LLC, for the term of September 1, 2019 through August 30, 2020. 
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the bid of Road Salt is hereby awarded to Champion Salt, LLC 
and is hereby approved and the Presiding Commissioner is authorized to execute any and all 
necessary documents on behalf of the County of Franklin and such other documents, certificates and 
instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this Order, 
for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the County.   
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, that the County shall, and the officials, agents and employees of the 
County are hereby authorized and directed to, take such further action, and execute and deliver such 
other documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and 
comply with the intent of this Order.       
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that a copy of this Order be provided to Champion Salt, LLC; Ron 
Williams, Highway Administrator; and Ann Struttmann, Purchasing Agent. 
 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Presiding Commissioner 

 
 
              Commissioner of 1st District 
 
 
              Commissioner of 2nd District 









































Commission Order No. 2019-381 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, August 27, 2019 
County of Franklin Bid Award 
 

Commission Order 2019-381 Page 1 

ss. 

 
IN THE MATTER OF AWARDING 
BIDS FOR HOT MIX OVERLAY- 
EVERGREEN LOOP ROAD 
 
 
WHEREAS, a public notice to bidders asking for sealed bids for "Hot Mix Overlay” on Evergreen Loop 
Road addressed to the Purchasing Department of Franklin County, Union, Missouri was published in 
the Washington Missourian in the July 26, 2019 edition, for receipt by August 16, 2019; and 
 
WHEREAS, after due deliberation and consideration and the recommendation of the Highway 
Administrator and the Purchasing Department, the Franklin County Commission awards the bid to the 
lowest and most responsive bidder, NB West. 
 
WHEREAS, NB West must submit to the Purchasing Department a bid bond and certificate of 
insurance within ten (10) days of this award.  
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the bid of Hot Mix Overlay on Evergreen Loop Road is hereby 
awarded to NB West and the Presiding Commissioner is authorized to execute any and all necessary 
documents on behalf of the County of Franklin and such other documents, certificates and 
instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this Order, 
for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the County.   
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, that the County shall, and the officials, agents and employees of the 
County are hereby authorized and directed to, take such further action, and execute and deliver such 
other documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and 
comply with the intent of this Order.       
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that a copy of this Order be provided to NB West; Ron Williams, 
Highway Administrator; and Ann Struttmann, Purchasing Agent. 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Presiding Commissioner 

 
 
              Commissioner of 1st District 
 
 
              Commissioner of 2nd District 



















Commission Order No. 2019-382 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, August 27, 2019 
County of Franklin Bid Award 
 

Commission Order 2019-382 Page 1 

ss. 

 
IN THE MATTER OF AWARDING 
BIDS FOR HOT MIX OVERLAY- 
BLUFF ROAD  
 
 
WHEREAS, a public notice to bidders asking for sealed bids for "Hot Mix Overlay” on Bluff Road 
addressed to the Purchasing Department of Franklin County, Union, Missouri was published in the 
Washington Missourian in the July 26, 2019 edition, for receipt by August 16, 2019; and 
 
WHEREAS, after due deliberation and consideration and the recommendation of the Highway 
Administrator and the Purchasing Department, the Franklin County Commission awards the bid to the 
lowest and most responsive bidder, NB West. 
 
WHEREAS, NB West must submit to the Purchasing Department a bid bond and certificate of 
insurance within ten (10) days of this award.  
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the bid of Hot Mix Overlay on Bluff Road is hereby awarded to 
NB West and the Presiding Commissioner is authorized to execute any and all necessary documents 
on behalf of the County of Franklin and such other documents, certificates and instruments as may be 
necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this Order, for and on behalf of and 
as the act and deed of the County.   
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, that the County shall, and the officials, agents and employees of the 
County are hereby authorized and directed to, take such further action, and execute and deliver such 
other documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and 
comply with the intent of this Order.       
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that a copy of this Order be provided to NB West; Ron Williams, 
Highway Administrator; and Ann Struttmann, Purchasing Agent. 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Presiding Commissioner 

 
 
              Commissioner of 1st District 
 
 
              Commissioner of 2nd District 









Commission Order No. 2019-383 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, August 27, 2019 
County of Franklin Contract/Agreement 
 

Commission Order 2019-383 Page 1 

ss. 

IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING 
THE TERMINATION OF AN EXISTING 
MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 
WITH RICOH-USA 
 
WHEREAS, Franklin County currently has an Agreement with Ricoh USA for maintenance on a Ricoh MP 
C4501A that is utilized in the Franklin County Purchasing Department; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is the desire of Franklin County to terminate such maintenance agreement as the services are 
no longer needed by the Purchasing Department; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Agreement has expired and is currently on a month-to-month term basis; and 
 
WHEREAS, upon approval of this Order, a letter will be sent to Ricoh USA, 1400 South Highway Drive, 
Fenton, Missouri 63026, of the County’s desire to terminate the subject Agreement which notice is hereby 
made formal by the County Commission. 
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED by the Franklin County Commission that the Agreement entered into by and 
between Franklin County and Ricoh USA for the Ricoh MP copier utilized by the Purchasing Department is 
hereby terminated effective the 1st day of September, 2019.   
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that a copy of this Order be provided to Ricoh USA and Ann Struttmann, 
Purchasing Agent. 
 

______________________________________ 
Presiding Commissioner 

 
 
              Commissioner of 1st District 
 
 
              Commissioner of 2nd District 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Commission Order No. 2019-384 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, August 27, 2019 
County of Franklin Contract/Agreement 
 

Commission Order 2019-384 Page 1 

ss. 

IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING 
AND APPROVING AN AGREEMENT 
WITH INSIGHT FOR THE COLLECTOR’S  
OFFICE 
 
WHEREAS, Franklin County Collector’s Office desires to enter into an agreement with Insight for the Microsoft 
SQL Server License and Software; and 
 
WHEREAS, the quote provided by Insight is for a three (3) year term with an annual payment of $11,196.51 for 
a total cost of $33,589.52. 
 
WHEREAS, the Select Plus Microsoft Agreement is also a necessary component of accepting the quote from 
Insight. 
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the quote from Insight for the Microsoft SQL Server License and Software 
for the Collector’s office and the agreement with Microsoft is hereby accepted and approved and the Presiding 
Commissioner is authorized to execute any and all necessary documents on behalf of the County of Franklin 
and such other documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and 
comply with the intent of this Order, for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the County. 
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the County shall, and the officials, agents and employees of the County 
are hereby authorized and directed to, take such further action, and execute and deliver such other 
documents, certificates, and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the 
intent of this Order  
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that a copy of this Order be provided to Insight; Doug Trentmann, Collector; Ann 
Struttmann, Purchasing; and Lynne Maloney, Accounts Payable. 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Presiding Commissioner 

 
 
             Commissioner of 1st District 
 
 
            Commissioner of 2nd District 















Commission Order No. 2019-385 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, August 27, 2019 
County of Franklin Contract/Agreement 
 

Commission Order 2019-385 Page 1 

ss. 

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING 
THE PURCHASE OF AN EVIDENCE 
SPACE SAVER STORAGE SYSTEM  
FOR THE FRANKLIN COUNTY PUBLIC 
SAFETY FACILITY 
 
WHEREAS, Bradford Systems Corporation has provided a quote for a Space Saver Shelving System for 
evidence storage as part of the additions and renovations to the Franklin County Public Safety Facility; and 

 
WHEREAS, the State of Missouri contract #C116048001 & #C116048002 has been submitted for 
consideration by Bradford Systems Corporation in the amount of $114,950.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, the payment terms of the proposal requires payment to be made by Franklin County within thirty 
(30) days from the date of the invoice which will be issued once the product arrives at the installation site at the 
Franklin County Public Safety Facility. 
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the State Contracts and proposal from Bradford Systems for the Space 
Saver Shelving System is hereby accepted and approved and the Presiding Commissioner is authorized to 
execute any and all necessary documents on behalf of the County of Franklin and such other documents, 
certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this 
Order, for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the County. 
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the County shall, and the officials, agents and employees of the County 
are hereby authorized and directed to, take such further action, and execute and deliver such other 
documents, certificates, and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the 
intent of this Order  
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that a copy of this Order be provided to Bradford Systems Corporation; Steve 
Pelton, Sheriff; and Ann Struttmann, Purchasing.  
 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Presiding Commissioner 

 
 
             Commissioner of 1st District 
 
 
            Commissioner of 2nd District 

















































Commission Order No. 2019-386 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, August 27, 2019 
County of Franklin Report 
 

Commission Order 2019-386 Page 1 

ss. 

IN THE MATTER OF  
APPROVING THE CONSENT  
AGENDA AND ALL THE 
ITEMS LISTED THEREON 
 
WHEREAS, in the course of the daily operation of county government certain routine actions are necessary; and 
 
WHEREAS, certain of the routine items referred to above involve either the issuance of licenses, the receipt of funds or 
the authorization of accounts payable and/or abstract of fees; and 
 
WHEREAS, the approval of such routine matters can be approved through the use of a “Consent Agenda”; and 
 
WHEREAS, in order to afford a better record of what has been approved through the use of the Consent Agenda it has 
been determined that it would be appropriate to pass a commission order weekly which approves all items contained in 
the Consent Agenda. 
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED by the County Commission of Franklin County that the Consent Agenda for August 27, 
2019 addressing the below listed items is hereby approved, to wit: 
 

Fees:    
 
Liquor Licenses:   Grimms Tree Brewing, LLC dba Point Labaddie Brewing 
   Grimms Tree Brewing, LLC dba Point Labaddie Brewing 
   Washington Jaycees 
   Eagle Lanes and Fun Zone 
   Pacific Brewhaus 
 
Auctioneer Licenses:   
 
Other:   

 
______________________________________ 

Presiding Commissioner 
 
 
              Commissioner of 1st District 
 
 
              Commissioner of 2nd District 
 
 
 
 
 
 













Commission Order No. 2019-387 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, August 27, 2019 
County of Franklin Agreement 

 

 

 

IN THE MATTER AUTHORIZING FRANKLIN COUNTY, MISSOURI  
TO ENTER INTO A LEASE PURCHASE TRANSACTION,  
THE PROCEEDS OF WHICH WILL BE USED TO PAY  
COSTS OF PUBLIC SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS AND  
TO REFUND CERTAIN OF THE COUNTY’S OUTSTANDING  
CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION AND AUTHORIZING  
THE EXECUTION OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS AND  
ACTIONS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH 
 
WHEREAS, Franklin County, Missouri (the “County”) desires to authorize the delivery of (a) 
Certificates of Participation (Franklin County, Missouri, Lessee), Series 2019A (the “Series 2019A 
Certificates”), evidencing proportionate interests of the owners thereof in basic rent payments to be made 
by the County under the Lease (as defined below), to obtain funds to (1) pay for the second phase of 
additions and renovations to the existing County public safety facility, including the additions of a new 
jail and a new 911 communications center and renovations to the existing facility for expanded Sheriff 
operations (collectively, the “2019 Project”) and (2) pay the costs of executing and delivering the Series 
2019A Certificates and (b) Refunding Certificates of Participation (Franklin County, Missouri, Lessee), 
Series 2019B (the “Series 2019B Certificates” and, together with the Series 2019A Certificates, the 
“Series 2019 Certificates”), evidencing proportionate interests of the owners thereof in basic rent 
payments to be made by the County under the Lease, to obtain funds to (1) refund all of the outstanding 
Refunding Certificates of Participation (Franklin County, Missouri, Lessee), Series 2012 and (2) pay the 
costs of executing and delivering the Series 2019B Certificates; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County owns the real property described on Schedule 1 of the Second Supplemental 
Lease (as defined below) and the improvements, including the County’s Government Center, Courthouse, 
Judicial Center, Sheriff’s Offices and Adult Detention Center, now or hereafter located thereon 
(collectively, the “Leased Property”); and 
 
WHEREAS, to facilitate the foregoing and to pay the cost thereof, it is necessary and desirable for the 
County to take the following actions: 

1. enter into a Second Supplemental Lease Purchase Agreement (the 
“Second Supplemental Lease”) between The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, 
N.A. (the “Trustee”), as lessor, and the County, as lessee, the form of which is attached 
hereto as Exhibit A, which amends and supplements the Lease Purchase Agreement 
dated as of September 1, 2012 between the Trustee and the County (the “Original 
Lease”), as amended and supplemented by the First Supplemental Lease Purchase 
Agreement dated as of November 1, 2018 between the Trustee and the County (the “First 
Supplemental Lease” and, together with the Original Lease and the Second Supplemental 
Lease, the “Lease”), pursuant to which the County leases the Leased Property from the 
Trustee on a year-to-year basis with an option to purchase the Trustee’s interest in the 
Leased Property;  



 

-2- 

2. enter into a Continuing Disclosure Agreement (the “Continuing 
Disclosure Agreement”) with The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as 
dissemination agent, pursuant to which the County agrees to provide financial 
information, certain operating data, and notices of certain enumerated events, the form of 
which is attached hereto as Exhibit B;  

3. enter into a Tax Compliance Agreement (the “Tax Compliance 
Agreement”) with the Trustee, pursuant to which the County makes certain 
representations and covenants related to the exclusion of the Interest Portions of Basic 
Rent (as defined in the Lease) under the Lease from gross income for purposes of federal 
income taxation, the form of which is attached hereto as Exhibit C; 

4. approve a Second Supplemental Declaration of Trust (the “Second 
Supplemental Declaration of Trust”) by the Trustee, the form of which is attached hereto 
as Exhibit D, which amends and supplements the Declaration of Trust dated as of 
September 1, 2012 (the “Original Declaration of Trust”), as amended and supplemented 
by the First Supplemental Declaration of Trust dated as of November 1, 2018 (the “First 
Supplemental Declaration of Trust” and, together with the Original Declaration of Trust 
and the Second Supplemental Declaration of Trust, the “Declaration of Trust”), pursuant 
to which the Series 2019 Certificates will be executed and delivered;  

5. approve an Official Statement with respect to the Series 2019 
Certificates, to be in substantially the same form as the Preliminary Official Statement 
with respect to the Series 2019 Certificates, the form of which is attached hereto as 
Exhibit E (the “Preliminary Official Statement,” and collectively, the “Official 
Statement”);  

6. enter into a Certificate Purchase Agreement (the “Certificate Purchase 
Agreement”) among the County, the Trustee and Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, 
Incorporated, St. Louis, Missouri (the “Underwriter”), the original purchaser of the Series 
2019 Certificates, the form of which is attached hereto as Exhibit F; and 

7. execute certain documents provided by the Trustee with respect to the 
Series 2019 Certificates (the “Trustee Documents”), the forms of which are attached 
hereto as Exhibit G. 

The Second Supplemental Lease, the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, the Tax Compliance 
Agreement, the Certificate Purchase Agreement and the Trustee Documents are referred to together herein 
as the “County Documents.” 

THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED BY THE COUNTY COMMISSION OF FRANKLIN 
COUNTY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Authorization of the Project.  The County hereby determines that the 2019 Project is 
in the public interest and hereby authorizes the 2019 Project. 

Section 2.  Approval of Sale and Delivery of the Series 2019 Certificates.  The County hereby 
approves the sale and delivery of the Series 2019 Certificates to the Underwriter at the purchase price and 
upon the terms provided in the Certificate Purchase Agreement.  Delivery of the Series 2019 Certificates 



 

-3- 

to the Underwriter shall occur as soon as practicable after the adoption of this Order, upon payment for 
the Series 2019 Certificates in accordance with the terms of the sale, as provided in the Certificate 
Purchase Agreement. The Series 2019 Certificates shall be in such denominations, shall be in such forms, 
shall have such other terms and provisions, and shall be executed and delivered in such manner subject to 
such provisions, covenants and agreements as are set forth in the Declaration of Trust. 

Section 3.  Limited Obligations.  The Series 2019 Certificates and the interest thereon shall be 
limited obligations, payable solely out of the rents, revenues and receipts received by the Trustee from the 
County pursuant to the Lease.  Neither the Lease nor the Series 2019 Certificates shall constitute a debt or 
liability of the County or of the State of Missouri or of any political subdivision thereof, and neither the 
Lease nor the Series 2019 Certificates shall constitute an indebtedness within the meaning of any 
constitutional or statutory debt limitation or restriction. 

Section 4.  Authorization and Approval of the County Documents and the Second 
Supplemental Declaration of Trust.   

(a) The County Documents and the Second Supplemental Declaration of Trust are hereby 
approved in substantially the forms submitted to and reviewed by the County Commission on the date 
hereof, with such changes therein as are approved by the Presiding Commissioner.  The Presiding 
Commissioner’s execution of the County Documents will be conclusive evidence of such approval. 

(b) The obligation of the County to pay Basic Rent Payments (as defined in the Lease) under 
the Lease is subject to annual appropriation and will constitute a current expense of the County and will 
not in any way be construed to be an indebtedness or liability of the County in contravention of any 
applicable constitutional or statutory limitation or requirement concerning the creation of indebtedness or 
liability by the County, nor will anything contained in the Lease constitute a pledge of the general tax 
revenues, funds or moneys of the County, and all provisions of the Lease will be construed so as to give 
effect to such intent. 

(c) The Presiding Commissioner is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the 
County Documents and to approve changes to the Declaration of Trust on behalf of and as the act and 
deed of the County.  The County Clerk or the Chief Deputy Clerk is hereby authorized to affix the 
County’s seal to the County Documents and attest said seal. 

 Section 5.   Approval of Preliminary Official Statement and Official Statement.   

(a) The Preliminary Official Statement, in the form presented to the County Commission and 
filed in the records of the County, is hereby ratified and approved, and the final Official Statement is 
hereby authorized and approved, supplementing, amending and completing the Preliminary Official 
Statement, with such changes therein and additions thereto as are necessary to conform to and describe 
the transaction related to the Series 2019 Certificates and approved by the Presiding Commissioner, who 
is authorized to execute and deliver the final Official Statement on behalf of and as the act and deed of the 
County.  The Presiding Commissioner’s execution of the Official Statement will be conclusive evidence 
of his approval thereof.  The County hereby approves the public distribution of the final Official 
Statement by the Underwriter in connection with the sale of the Series 2019 Certificates.   

(b) For the purpose of enabling the Underwriter to comply with the requirements of Rule 
15c212(b)(1) of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Rule”), the County hereby deems the 



 

-4- 

Preliminary Official Statement to be “final” as of its date, except for the omission of such information as 
is permitted by the Rule, and the appropriate officers of the County are hereby authorized, if requested, to 
provide the Underwriter a letter or certification to such effect and to take such other actions or execute 
such other documents as such officers in their reasonable judgment deem necessary to enable the 
Underwriter to comply with the requirement of such Rule. 

Section 6.  Further Authority.  The County will, and the officials and agents of the County are 
hereby authorized and directed to, take such actions, expend such funds and execute such other 
documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the 
intent of this Order and to carry out, comply with and perform the duties of the County with respect to the 
County Documents and the other documents authorized or approved hereby. 

Section 7. Severability.  The sections of this Order shall be severable.  If any section of this 
Order is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the remaining sections shall remain 
valid, unless the court finds that: (a) the valid sections are so essential to and inseparably connected and 
dependent upon the void section that it cannot be presumed that the County Commission has or would 
have enacted the valid sections without the void ones, and (b) the valid sections, standing alone, are 
incomplete and are incapable of being executed in accordance with the legislative intent.  The invalid 
provision shall be omitted and this Order shall be amended to the extent possible to conform to the 
original intent of the County. 

Section 8.  Governing Law.  This Order shall be governed exclusively by and construed in 
accordance with the applicable laws of the State of Missouri. 

Section 9.   Effective Date.  This order shall be in full force and effect from and after its 
passage. 

PASSED BY THE COUNTY COMMISSION OF FRANKLIN COUNTY, MISSOURI, 
THIS 27TH DAY OF AUGUST, 2019. 

(SEAL) 
 ______________________________________ 

ATTEST: Presiding Commissioner 

______________________________________ 
First District Commissioner 

___________________________________ _______________________________________ 
Tim Baker, Clerk of the County Commission Second District Commissioner 



EXHIBIT A 

[On file in the office of the County Clerk] 

SECOND SUPPLEMENTAL LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT



EXHIBIT B 

[On file in the office of the County Clerk] 

 
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT



EXHIBIT C 

[On file in the office of the County Clerk] 

 
TAX COMPLIANCE AGREEMENT



EXHIBIT D 

[On file in the office of the County Clerk] 

 
SECOND SUPPLEMENTAL DECLARATION OF TRUST



EXHIBIT E 

[On file in the office of the County Clerk] 

 
PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT



EXHIBIT F 

[On file in the office of the County Clerk] 

 
CERTIFICATE PURCHASE AGREEMENT



EXHIBIT G 

[On file in the office of the County Clerk] 

 
TRUSTEE DOCUMENTS 


	I. Call to Order
	II. Minutes Approval
	1. August 20, 2019
	2. August 20, 2019
	3. August 22, 2019
	4. August 22, 2019

	III. Public Request for Discussion
	IV. Action Items
	a. 2019-370 MOU MDHSS - Vital Records
	2019-371 911 Tax Rate 2020
	2019-372 Tax Charges May
	2019-373 Tax Charges June
	2019-374 Tax Charges July 
	2019-375 Lewis, Reed & Allen Payment
	2019-376 Notice of Public Hearing Tax Rate
	2019-377 Child Safety Grant 
	2019-378 DEA Agreement
	2019-379 Sansoucy Invoice
	2019-380 Bid Award - Road Salt
	2019-381 Bid Award Hot Mix Overlay Evergreen Loop Road
	2019-382 Bid Award Hot Mix Overlay Bluff Road
	2019-383 Terminating Ricoh Agreement
	2019-384 Insight Agreement Collector's Office
	2019-385 Bradford Systems Corporation
	2019-386 Consent Agenda
	2019-387 Lease Purchase Transaction - COP

	V. Discussion Items and Reports
	VI. Years of Service Recognition
	VII. Adjournment

